IN THE

UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE SEVENTH CIRCUIT
No. 92-4038

GROVE FRESH DISTRIBUTORS. INC.,

)

Plaintiff,

)

v-

)

EVERFRESH JUICE COMPANY and

)

HUGO POWELL,

)

Defendants.

)

GROVE FRESH DISTRIBUTORS, INC.,

J

Plaintiff.

v-

JOHN LABATT LIMITED, a Canadian

corporation, etal.,

Defendants,

No. 89 C 1113

)

)

No. 90 C 5009

)

James B Zagel

,

Judge Presiding

)

)

and

)

THE AD HOC COALITION OF
IN-DEPTH JOURNALISTS.

)
)

Intervenor-Appellant. )

MOTION OF JOHN P. MESSINA FOR A HEARING

REGARDING ALLEGATIONS OF MISCONDUCT IN APPELLEESBRIEF OF JULY 14, 1993, AND FOR OTHER RELIEF

Petitioner, John P. Messina,pro sea brings this motion for three purposes. First,
pursuant to Rule 46(c) of the Federal Rules of Appellate Procedure, petitioner requests an

evidentiary hearing regarding the allegations of misconduct which are made against him

in the brief filed on July 14, 1993. by defendant-appellee Everfresh, Inc., and adopted by
EXHIBIT

all of the other defendants-appellees ("Appellees' Brief). Pursuant to the Declaratory

Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. §2201, petitioner prays for a declaration that these allegations of
misconduct are false.

Second, petitioner prays for a declaration regarding a certain agreement between
petitioner and the defendants, a so-called Legal Representation and Consulting
Agreement dated March 25, 1993. For the last 90 days the defendants have invoked this
agreement as a bar to petitioner's having a hearing in this or any other forum on their

allegations of misconduct. Petitioner prays for a declaration that this agreement is void
because petitioner's execution of the agreement was coerced, and because the several
purposes of the agreement are against public policy, one such purpose being to prohibit
petitioner from making any disclosures to this Court regarding the history of the
proceedings in the trial court.

Third, petitioner requests that the Rule 46(c) hearing be expedited, and that it be
consolidated with this Court's consideration of the merits of Intervenor's appeal.

In support of this motion petitioner is submitting his affidavit and two appendices

of exhibits, Appendix I and Appendix II. Petitioner's affidavit is Exhibit 1 in Appendix I.
Appendix II contains items from the case under seal. In a separate motion, petitioner
requests that Appendix II be filed under seal.

Petitioner will also offer the expert testimony of Professor Daniel Coquillette on

the issue of the illegality of the Legal Representation and Consulting Agreement. A copy
of Professor Coquillette's resume appears at Exhibit 19, Appendix I. Professor
Coquillette is the Dean Emeritus of Boston College Law School (1985-1993). His
present activities include: Reporter, Committee on Rules of Practice and Procedures,

Judicial Conference of the United States; Member, American Bar Association Standing
Committee on Ethics and Professional Responsibility; and Advisor, American Law
Institute, Restatement of the Law Governing Lawyers.

In further support of this motion petitioner states as follows:

INTRODUCTION

1.

Petitioner is one of the attorneys of record for plaintiff Grove Fresh

Distributors, Inc. ("Grove Fresh"). On March 25, 1993, Grove Fresh executed an
agreement to settle its claims against the defendants for the sum of $2,000,000. Since the
settlement, Grove Fresh has ceased to participate in this appeal.

2.

The primary issues in this appeal are, first, whether the trial court erred in

sealing case no. 90 C 5009 in August 1990, without making any findings or giving any
reasons; and second, whether the trial court erred in refusing to vacate the seal in

November 1992, after a group of journalists sought access to the record in order to report
on the controversy.

3.

The defendants make only one argument on the merits of the seal. They

state that on August 23, 1990, an unnamed Grove Fresh attorney sent them a letter

"threatening to file a... lawsuit... which would contain unsubstantiated and scandalous

allegations," and that the purpose of the alleged threat was "to extract a large settlement."
When the defendants refused to pay, the Grove Fresh attorney filed the complaint in case
no. 90 C 5009. (Appellees' Brief, p. 7.)

4.

Appellees' Brief does not identify the Grove Fresh attorney by name.

However, it is clear from the record on appeal that petitioner is the attorney who sent and

signed the letter of August 23, 1990, and who drafted and signed the complaint in case
no. 90 C 5009.

5.

The defendants aver that "many of the allegations in the complaint [in case

no. 90 C 5009] were false, contained information derived from confidential discovery
material subject to [a] protective order, and were designed to embarrass, harass, and

falsely accuse defendants." (Appellees' Brief, p. 8.) [emphasis added] The defendants
further state that Grove Fresh's attorney "sought to misuse the District Court's files to
harm Everfresh," and that the trial court, "[k]nowing the full status and history of the case

in controversy,... ordered that the ... complaint be filed under seal." (Appellees' Brief, p.
27.)

6.

Defendants' statements about Grove Fresh's attorney can only be

understood as alleging that the attorney knowingly and willfully drafted a false and
scandalous complaint; that the purpose of the deliberately false complaint was to

intimidate the defendants into paying an unjustly large settlement; and that the district
court ordered the seal because the defendants needed to be protected from the attorney's
deliberately false statements.

7.

If the statements about Grove Fresh's attorney's conduct were true, which

they are not, the attorney would be guilty of the crime of intimidation, a class three felony
under Illinois law. 70 ILCS 5/12-6 (1992). See People v. Hubble, 81 111. App. 3d 560,

563,401 N.E.2d 1282, 1285 (2d Dist. 1980) (essence of crime of intimidation is "a threat
made with intent to coerce another person.") The attorney would also be guilty of having

filed a groundless complaint in violation of Rule 11, and of having violated at least five
Rules of Professional Conduct.1

8.

Defendants' brief does not label the statements about Grove Fresh's

attorney as "allegations." Rather, they are set forth in the "Statement of Facts" section of

the brief where they are presented without qualification, as though they were positive

findings of fact made by the trial court. In a brief to the Seventh Circuit, "[a] statement of
positive fact is a representation not only that the fact is true as represented but also that
1

The five rules implicated by the statements in Appellees' Brief are as follows:

• Rule 1.2(f)(l): "In representation of a client a lawyer shall not file a suit... or
take other action on behalf of the client when the lawyer knows or reasonably should
know that such action would serve merely to harass or maliciously injure another."
• Rule 3.1: "A lawyer shall not bring ... a proceeding ... unless there is a basis

for doing so that is not frivolous ..."

• Rule 3.3(a)(l): "In appearing in a professional capacity before a tribunal a

lawyer shall not: make a statement of material fact or law to a tribunal which the lawyer

knows or reasonably should know is false."
• Rule 4.4: "In representing a client, a lawyer shall not use means that have no
substantial purpose other than to embarrass, delay, or burden a third person ..."
• Rule 8.4(a)(4): "A lawyer shall not engage in conduct involving dishonesty,
fraud, deceit or misrepresentation."

